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MAY IT PLEASE THE COMMISSIONERS  

1. We act for Havelock Village Limited1 (HVL) and TaTa Valley Limited2 (TVL) who are 

original and further submitters on the Proposed Waikato District Plan (Stage 1) 

(Proposed Plan).   

2. We refer to the memorandum of counsel from Mr Peter Fuller dated 4 March 2021 

regarding legal and procedural issues with the section 42A Framework Report and 

the Hearing Panel's subsequent Minute and Directions dated 5 March 2021.   

3. In response to Mr Fuller's Memorandum, the Hearings Panel has directed that 

parties may:  

file a short memorandum with the Hearings Administrator (no more than 4 pages long) that 

succinctly addresses whether the procedure set out in the Framework Report and, in particular 

compliance with Lens1, should be generally adhered to, and, if not, the reasons why. 

4. HVL and TVL largely agree with the legal and procedural issues raised by Mr Fuller's 

memorandum regarding the proposed 3 Lens approach, in particular, the concern 

that Lens 1 may be applied as a bar or threshold that rezonings must pass in order 

to be considered against the other 2 lens3.  This proposed approach to Lens 1 is 

inconsistent with the relevant statutory tests and established case authority and 

should not be adopted. 

5. At a practical level, the objectives and policies of the notified Proposed Plan (ie the 

proposed Lens 1 filter) are arguably now to a degree obsolete or will at the very least 

require refinement.  They were the subject of extensive submission and evidence at 

the Topic 3: Strategic Objectives hearing.  They were also prepared a number of 

years ago, before the most recent set of national directions, in particular the National 

Policy Statement on Urban Development 2020.   

6. It would therefore be premature to assess rezoning proposals against objectives and 

policies that could change, perhaps materially in light of this ongoing hearing 

process and changing higher order directives.  This reinforces the fact that Lens 1 

should be a final check for the Panel, once the objectives and policies are settled, 

not a gateway or threshold test that must be passed for a rezoning proposal to be 

considered on its merits.   

 
1 Submitter 862. 
2 Submitter 574.  
3 See paragraph 14 of Mr Fuller's memorandum  referring to paragraph 46 of s42A Framework report  
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7. In short, we also agree with Mr Fuller's description of the proper role for Lens 1: 

2. Lens 1 is better described as an "integration test" for horizontal and vertical consistency in the 

Plan.  While such a check is appropriate, it should be a final internal check and is subservient 

to the relevant statutory tests.  

8. Instead of the 3 lens analysis, HVL and TVL consider that the Section 42A report 

writers should be directed follow the standard statutory tests for plan making when 

assessing the rezoning proposals.  The statutory tests will be well known to the 

Hearings Panel and were outlined in the Opening Legal Submissions by Counsel for 

the Waikato District Council, dated 23 September 2019.  A useful summary or 

checklist of the relevant statutory tests, as outlined by the Environment Court in 

Colonial Vineyard Limited v Marlborough District Council 4, is contained within 

Appendix 1 to those submissions (attached).  HVL and TVL respectfully suggest that 

Appendix 1 may form a more fulsome checklist for the s42A writers and 

acknowledge that the Lens 2 assessment largely captures steps 2-6 of that list. 

9. HVL and TVL also acknowledge that the matters contained within Lens 3 may be of 

some practical assistance as part of the overall assessment toolkit.  However, the 

matters listed are not specific statutory requirements and should be considered 

subservient to those.  These principles should be treated as guidance only.   

10. In summary, HVL and TVL:  

(a) Do not consider that compliance with Lens 1 should be adhered to in the 

manner currently proposed by the s42A Framework Report; 

(b) Suggest that Appendix 1 to the Opening Legal Submissions by Counsel for 

the Waikato District Council, dated 23 September 2019 may form a more 

fulsome checklist for the s42A writers (acknowledging that Lens 2 largely 

captures steps 2-6 of that list). 

11. Counsel is available to attend the conference on Friday 12 March 2021 and answer 

any questions from the Panel.  

DATED: 9 March 2021 

 

V S Evitt / M G Gribben 

Counsel for Havelock Village Limited and TaTa 

Valley Limited 
 

4 [2014] NZ EnvC 55 at [17] and supplemented by recent RMA amendments. 










